
Page 1 of 2 
State Public Works Division 

Board Meeting Notice & Agenda 
April 12, 2023 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
STATE OF NEVADA 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 
 
 

 
STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 
MEETING NOTICE & AGENDA 

 
 
DATE & TIME OF MEETING:          Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 9:00 a.m.  
        
   
NOTICE:   Unless set for a specific time, items on the agenda may be taken out of order at the 

discretion of the Chair. The public body may combine two or more items for 
consideration; and the public body may remove an item or defer discussion of an item 
on the agenda at any time. 

 
 Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial 

proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the board may refuse 
to consider public comment. See NRS 233B.126. Public comment will be limited to 3 
minutes per person. 

 
PLACES OF VIDEO CONFERENCE MEETING: 

  
  NORTHERN NEVADA    SOUTHERN NEVADA    

State Public Works Division   State Public Works Division 
515 E. Musser Street, Suite 102   2300 McLeod Street 
1st Floor Conference Room   Conference Room 
Carson City, NV  89701    Las Vegas, NV  89104 
Phone: (775) 684-4141    Phone: (702) 486-5115 

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Public Comment 
 
Public comments will be taken during this agenda item. No action may be taken on a matter 
raised under this item until the matter is included on an agenda as an item on which action 
may be taken. Public comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person.    
 



Page 2 of 2 
State Public Works Division 

Board Meeting Notice & Agenda 
April 12, 2023 

 
 

3. For Possible Action:  Acceptance and approval of Public Works Board meeting minutes: 
December 9, 2022, and January 4, 2023.  

 
4. For Discussion Only:  Introduction: New Board Member Philip Mannelly, Esq. and Jack Robb, 

Director of Department of Administration  
 

5. For Discussion Only:  2023 Legislative Session Update 
 

I. CIP 
II. SPWD Bills 
III. Other relevant Bills 

 
6. For Discussion Only:  Public Workshop, Executive Order 2023-003 Regulation Review 

I. Survey Results 
II. Staff Recommendations 
III. Public/stakeholder Input 

i. Written submissions 
ii. Other stakeholder input 

  
7. For Discussion Only:  Board comment and discussion 

I. Board comments on any agenda item 
II. Items to be included in future agendas 
III. Review of action items for SPWD management 
IV. Set future meeting dates 

 
8. Public Comment 

 
Public comments will be taken during this agenda item. No action may be taken on a matter 
raised under this item until the matter is included on an agenda as an item on which action 
may be taken. Public comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person.    

 
9. Adjournment 

 
NOTES: 
(1) The appearance of the phrase “For Possible Action” at the beginning of an agenda item denotes items or sub-items on 

which the Board may take action. 
(2) Notice of this meeting was posted in the following locations: 

• State Public Works Division, Las Vegas Office, 2300 McLeod Street, Las Vegas, Nevada 89104; 
• State Public Works Division, Carson City Office, 515 E. Musser St., Suite 102, Carson City, Nevada 89701; 

and 
• The following web locations: 

o http://publicworks.nv.gov 
o http://notice.nv.gov  

(3)  We are pleased to provide reasonable accommodations for members of the public with disabilities. If special arrangements 
are necessary, please notify Kent LeFevre, Administrator for the Public Works Division, 515 E. Musser St., Suite 102, Carson 
City, Nevada 89701, telephone (775) 684-4141, or via email, to j.wiest@admin.nv.gov as soon as possible and no later than 
24 hours prior to the time of the meeting.   

(4)  Abbreviations: SPWB is the State Public Works Board, SPWD is the State Public Works Division, CIP is the Capital 
Improvement Program, A/E is Architect/Engineer, IFC is Interim Finance Committee, BOE is Board of Examiners, RFP is 
Request for Proposal, CMAR is Construction Manager at Risk, and RFQ is Request for Qualifications. 

(5) For further information, or supporting materials contact Kent LeFevre, Administrator the State Public Works Division, 515 E. 
Musser St., Suite 102, Carson City, Nevada 89701.  Phone (775) 684-4141, Fax (775) 684-4142. 

http://publicworks.nv.gov/
http://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:j.wiest@admin.nv.gov


 
 
 
 
 

State Public Works  
Board Meeting 

Roll Call 
April 12, 2023, 9:00 am 

 
 
 
 
 
  Attended 
 Name Yes No 

 Chairperson Adam Hand   

 Vice Chairperson Clint Bentley   

 Member Tito Tiberti   

 Member Kevin Lewis   

 Member Philip Mannelly   

 Member / Director of the Dept. of Administration,   

 Jack Robb     

 

  

 

  
 





Joe Lombardo 
Governor 
 

 

Jack Robb              
Director 

 
Matthew Tuma 
Deputy Director 

 
Kent A. LeFevre 

 Administrator 

Carson City Office: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
Phone:  (775) 684-4141 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (775) 684-1800 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

Las Vegas Office: 
2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 
Phone:  (702) 486-5115 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (702) 486-4300

 
STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 

Meeting of April 12, 2023 
Agenda Item # 2 

SUBJECT TITLE:  

Public Comment 

DISCUSSION: 

Public comments will be taken during this agenda item. No action may be taken on a matter raised under 
this item until the matter is included on an agenda as an item on which actions may be taken. At the Chair’s 
discretion, public comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person. 
 
PRIOR ACTIONS: 
 

Not applicable. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS/ISSUES: 
 

Not applicable. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

Not applicable. 
 
ACTION ITEM: 
 

Not required. 
 
PREPARED BY:  
 
The Assistant to the Administrator 
 





Joe Lombardo 
Governor 
 

 

Jack Robb              
Director 

 
Matthew Tuma 
Deputy Director 

 
Kent A. LeFevre 

 Administrator 

Carson City Office: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
Phone:  (775) 684-4141 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (775) 684-1800 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

Las Vegas Office: 
2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 
Phone:  (702) 486-5115 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (702) 486-4300

 
STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD ACTION ITEM REQUEST 

Meeting of April 12, 2023 
 

Agenda Item # 3 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: 
 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance and approval of Public Works Board meeting minutes for: 
  
 December 9, 2022 (attached) 
 January 4, 2023 (attached)  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Construction Law Counsel has reviewed the December 9, 2022, meeting minutes and recommends the 
following changes: 
1. Page 8:22 change “Where this is?” to “Where is this?” 
2. Page 8:23 change “It’s the Augustine Building” to “It’s located at the corner of Mojave and Stewart” 
3. Page 14:23 change “PPI” to “DEI” 
4. Page 15:5 change “Mr. LeFevre” to “Chairman Hand” 
5. Page 16:10 change “spoke” to “speak” 
6. Page 40:17 change “long” to “bond” 
7. Page 40:22 change “were the telling of” to “we’re implementing in” 
8. Page 41:4 change “CEMAR” to “CMAR” 
9. Page 41:6 change “NIT” to “KNIT” 
10. Page 46:14 change “2011” to “2021” 
11. Page 48:5 change “Governor” to “Governor’s budget” 
12. Page 48:14 change “may in stack log” to “maintenance backlog” 
13. Page 48:15 change “fund” to “bond” 
 
Construction Law Counsel has reviewed the January 4, 2023, meeting minutes and recommends the 
following changes: 
No recommended revisions 
 
PRIOR ACTIONS: 
 
None.  
 



   
 

Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACTS//ISSUES: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
  
Approve or deny December 9, 2022, meeting minutes as amended.   
Approve or deny January 4, 2023, meeting minutes as presented.  
 
ACTION ITEM: 
Motion to approve or deny approval of December 9, 2022, meeting minutes as amended.  
Motion to approve or deny approval of January 4, 2023, meeting minutes as presented.  
 
PREPARED BY: 
  
Susan K. Stewart, Deputy Attorney General and Construction Law Counsel  

 











































Joe Lombardo 
Governor 
 

 

Jack Robb              
Director 

 
Matthew Tuma 
Deputy Director 

 
Kent A. LeFevre 

 Administrator 

Carson City Office: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
Phone:  (775) 684-4141 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (775) 684-1800 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

Las Vegas Office: 
2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 
Phone:  (702) 486-5115 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (702) 486-4300

 
STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 

Meeting of April 12, 2023 
 
Agenda Item # 4 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: 
 
Introduction of new Board members: 
 

• Philip Mannelly, Esq.  
• Jack Robb, Director of Department of Administration 

 
DISCUSSION: 
  

• Jack Robb, Director of Department of Administration appointed by Governor Lombardo, 
serves on the Board pursuant to NRS 341.020(2).  

• Philip Mannelly was appointed by former Governor Sisolak to fill the vacancy created by 
Sean Stewart’s resignation. As a licensed attorney practicing construction law, Philip’s 
appointment meets the requirements of NRS 341.020 (2)(a)(2).  

 
PRIOR ACTIONS: 
 
None.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS//ISSUES: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 
ACTION ITEM: 
 
Not Applicable.  
  
PREPARED BY:  
 
Susan K. Stewart, Deputy Attorney General and Construction Law Counsel  





Joe Lombardo 
Governor 
 

 

Jack Robb              
Director 

 
Matthew Tuma 
Deputy Director 

 
Kent A. LeFevre 

 Administrator 

Carson City Office: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
Phone:  (775) 684-4141 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (775) 684-1800 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

Las Vegas Office: 
2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 
Phone:  (702) 486-5115 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (702) 486-4300

 
STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD  

Meeting of April 12, 2023 
 

Agenda Item # 5 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  
 
2023 Legislative Session Update 

 
I. CIP 
II. SPWD Bills 
III. Other relevant Bills 

 
DISCUSSION: 
  
CIP Update 
Administrator LeFevre will provide an update.  
 
SPWD Bills 
SPWD proposed the following: 
SB 52 – adding a consideration of ‘net-zero’ to standards SPWD is required to adopt. 
SB 25 – implements a process for long-term planning for state office space.  
SB26 – raises dollar thresholds on SPWD contract change order limits. 
 
Other relevant bills 
Construction Law Counsel will provide a brief update on legislation in the 2023 Legislative Session that 
may impact SPWD. 
 
PRIOR ACTIONS: 
 
None.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS//ISSUES: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 



   
 

Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 
ACTION ITEM: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 
PREPARED BY: 
  
Susan K. Stewart, Deputy Attorney General and Construction Law Counsel  
 

 





Joe Lombardo 
Governor 
 

 

Jack Robb              
Director 

 
Matthew Tuma 
Deputy Director 

 
Kent A. LeFevre 

 Administrator 

Carson City Office: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
Phone:  (775) 684-4141 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (775) 684-1800 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

Las Vegas Office: 
2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 
Phone:  (702) 486-5115 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (702) 486-4300

 
STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 

Meeting of April 12, 2023 
Agenda Item # 6 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  
 
Public Workshop, Executive Order 2023-003 Regulation Review 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Executive Order 2023-003  

• Survey Results 
• Staff Recommendations 
• Public/stakeholder Input 

o Written submissions 
o Other stakeholder input 

 
Memo – State Public Works Division Regulation Review 
Exhibit A – Governor’s Executive Order 2023 -003 
Exhibit B – Informational Report – Executive Order 2023-003 
Exhibit C – Survey Questions and Results 
Exhibit D – Notice of Public Workshop  
 
PRIOR ACTIONS: 
 
None.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS//ISSUES: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Not Applicable.  
 
ACTION ITEM: 
 
Not Applicable.   
 
PREPARED BY:  
Susan K. Stewart, Deputy Attorney General and Construction Law Counsel  









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 



1 
 

Informational Report – Executive Order 2023-003 
 
Pursuant to Executive Order 2023-003, a report must be submitted with the following information: 
 
Section 1 - Comprehensive Review of Regulations 
Every executive branch department, agency, board and commission shall undertake a comprehensive review of the regulations 
subject to its enforcement. On or before, May 1, 2023 each department, agency, board and commission shall provide a report 
to the Governor’s office detailing how the regulation subject to its enforcement can be streamlined, clarified, reduced or 
otherwise improved to ensure those regulations provide for the general welfare of the State without unnecessarily inhibiting 
economic growth. 
 
The report must include for each regulation identified in the comprehensive review that can be streamlined, clarified, reduced, 
or otherwise improved to ensure that the regulation provide for the general welfare of the State without unnecessarily inhibiting 
economic growth: 

1. The citation of the regulation with clear indication of the proposed modification in blue italics and matters to be 
omitted in red and bracketed.  

2. A clear and concise explanation on why such change should occur. 
3. Information for each public meeting held to discuss the proposed regulation change, as mandated by Section 3 of 

Executive Order 2023-003, which must include: 
a. The date of the meeting(s) and number of persons who attended; 
b. Information for each person who provided public oral or written comment or testimony on the regulation:   

i. Name of person; 
ii. Name of entity or organization represented and address (if applicable); 

iii. Contact telephone number; 
iv. Electronic mail address; and 

c. A summary of each person’s public oral or written comment or testimony.  
4. The estimated impact on any business, person, or agency if the change is to occur, which must include:  

a. The adverse and beneficial effects;    
b. The positive or negative economic impact; and  
c. Cost savings to the state or agency. 

5. In the event your agency has sufficient justification for an exemption to this Executive Order, as described below and 
in Section 5, please submit a list of requests for any such exemption to dktedford@gov.nv.gov.  Qualifying purposes 
for an exemption include: 

a. Regulations that affect public health; 
b. Regulations that affect public safety and security; 
c. Regulations that are necessary in the pursuit of federal funds and certifications; 
d. Regulations that affect the application of powers, functions and duties essential to the operation of the 

executive branch agency, department, board or commission at issue; 
e. Regulations that affect pending judicial deadlines; and 
f. Regulations necessary to comply with federal law. 

 

Section 2 – Regulation for Removal 
As part of its report, every executive branch department, agency, board and commission shall provide a list of not less than ten 
(10) regulations recommended for removal, ranking them in descending order of priority. 
 
The report must include for each of the ten (10) regulations recommended for removal (ranked in descending order of priority): 

1. The citation of the regulation with matters to be omitted in red and bracketed.  
2. A clear and concise explanation of the need for the elimination of the regulation. 
3. Information for each public meeting held to discuss the proposed regulation elimination, as mandated by Section 3 of 

Executive Order 2023-003, which must include: 
a. The date of the meeting(s) and the number of persons who attended; 
b. Information for each person who provided public oral or written comment or testimony on the regulation:   

i. Name of person; 
ii. Name of entity or organization represented and address (if applicable); 

iii. Contact telephone number; 
iv. Electronic mail address; and 

c. A summary of each person’s public oral or written comment or testimony. 
4. The estimated impact on any business, person, or agency if the change is to occur, which must include:  

mailto:dktedford@gov.nv.gov


2 
 

a. The adverse and beneficial effects;    
b. The positive or negative economic impact; and 
c. Cost savings to the state or agency.   

 

Section 3 - Mandatory Meeting and Report 
Prior to submitting their respective reports, every executive branch department, agency, board and commission shall hold a 
public hearing, after having provided reasonable notice consistent with Chapter 233B of the Nevada Revised Statutes, to key 
industry stakeholders, to: (i) vet their recommended changes; (ii) solicit input as to the merits of those changes and (iii) 
identify other regulatory changes stakeholders feel are worthy of consideration. Stakeholder input shall be reflected in the 
summary of findings and recommendations included in each submitted report. 

Executive Order 2023-03 – Template 
 

Name of department, agency, board, or commission: _________________________________________________________ 
Address: ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City: _________________________________________ Zip:________________ Telephone: ____________________ 
Name of Director: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Director Email: ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Section 1 - Comprehensive Review of Regulations / Section 3 – Mandatory Meeting and Report 

The above-named department, agency, board, or commission conducted a comprehensive review of the regulations subject 
to its enforcement that can be streamlined, clarified, reduced, or otherwise improved to ensure those regulations provide for 
the general welfare of the State without unnecessarily inhibiting economic growth. The regulations identified for Section 1 
of Executive Order 2023-03 are listed below with the information as required on page 1 of the instruction sheet on the 
following pages of the report: 

Regulation/ Information as required on page 1 Page number 
1.  
2  
3.  
4.  
5.  
6.  
7.  
8.  
9.  
10.  
11.  
12.  
13.  
14.  
15.  
16.  
17.  
18.  
19.  
20.  
21.  
22.  
23.  
24.  



3 
 

25.  
26.  
27.  
29.  
29.  
30.  

 
 

Section 2 – Regulation for Removal / Section 3 – Mandatory Meeting and Report 

The above-named department, agency, board or commission conducted a comprehensive review of the regulations subject to 
its enforcement and identified the following ten (10) or more regulations recommended for removal. The regulations 
identified for Section 2 of Executive Order 2023-03, ranked in descending order of priority, are listed below with the 
information as required on page 1 of the instruction sheet on the following pages of the report: 

Regulation/Information as required on page 1 Page number 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4.  
5.  
6.  
7.  
8.  
9.  
10.  
11.  
12.  
13.  
14.  
15.  
16.  
17.  
18.  
19.  
20.  
21.  
22.  
23.  
24.  
25.  
26.  
27.  
28.  
29.  
30.  
31.  
32.  
33.  



4 
 

34.  
35.  
36.  
37.  
38.  
39.  
40.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit C 



State Public Works Division
Executive Order 2023‐003
Survey Results

ID
Entity or Organization 
Represented:

Which NAC 
section needs the 
most 
improvement?

Which of the following 
statements apply to the 
current regulation? Please describe your recommended changes:

Please provide a clear and concise 
explanation of why such changes should 
occur:

Is there anticipated 
cost savings to the state 
or agency as a result of 
these changes?

What type of economic 
impact would be the likely 
result of these changes?

Describe both adverse and beneficial effects resulting from the proposed 
changes in the regulation:

Is there 
another NAC 
section that 
needs 
improvemen
t?

Which NAC section is the 
second most in need of 
improvement?

Which of the 
following 
statements 
apply to the 
current 
regulation?2

Please describe your 
recommended changes:2

Please provide a clear and concise explanation 
of why such changes should occur:2

Is there anticipated 
cost savings to the 
state or agency as a 
result of these 
changes?2

What type of 
economic 
impact would 
be the likely 
result of these 
changes?2

Describe both adverse and beneficial effects 
resulting from the proposed changes in the 
regulation:2

Is there 
another NAC 
section that 
needs 
improvement?
2

1 Burke Construction Group  338.64 Unnecessarily onerous;

None the System Works  ‐  I had to Vote on Item #7 this is not Fair as they
did not give any Positive Items on the Questions ‐  This will  make the 
result INCORRECT  Nothing ‐  The CMAR process works No Negative

Project would cost more ‐ Timelines would be extended ‐  The State would not get 
real time feedback from all parties  No

2 Monument 338

Unfocused and 
inefficient;Unnecessarily 
onerous;Limiting the 
economic potential of the 
state;

Definitely NV needs to lower the PW rates it is using.  The high wage is 
50% than what most worker's would be glad to receive.  It does allow 
more opportunity for organizations with pricing focused on the gaming 
corridor, but the tax payer should not have to pay so much.  There is no 
reason NV should be paying more for public buildings than nearly every 
state in the nation.  

Also the AUA, Apprentice Utilization Act is silly and arbitrary.  It requires 
to state to pay money to labor organizations for something they have 
always done for free.  Additionally something that they later charge their 
members for.  Why is the state doubling that fee?  They could put more 
bodies to work by distributing those funds over more jobs.

AUA has led to a landslide of labor compliance complaints by third party 
groups.  Ask each public entity how many of these complaints and how 
much paper they have worked through.  They will all say they had to 
double their staff and develop a stronger review process which leads to 
mostly clerical failures.  The stringent LCP system does the same work.  

Wasted money for first paragraph.  The 
Governor and School Districts could have 
more suitable assets if the rates just 
lowered.  The Schools operated at 75% PW 
on term ago and they still had plenty of 
good contactors apply.

AUA speaks for itself as a failed program 
which decreased contractor participation 
in Public Projects because it was so biased.

Again ask the offices.  I can get you their 
names.  They hate this program and all of 
the frivolous claims it generates. Yes Positive

Some workers would have to work more hours to make their previous highs.  More 
projects though would lead to more bodies exceeding their previous compensation 
than this constricted group that are currently succeeding. No

3 Summit Engineering Corp 0 All of the above; None None No Positive None No

4 Western Door and Gate, LLC 338.46 Unfocused and inefficient;
Section should be opned up to all certified disabilites.  This can be 
accomplished through https://disabilityin.org

There are quite a few contractors that have 
a disability and are doing their best to 
compete in a market that sees "token" 
copanies choosen because they have a 
straw person to check a box.  By opening it 
up to ALL certified disability owned 
business you create a competitive ,arket 
taht will save the State a ton of money.   Yes Positive

I'm very proud to have come from a military family and appreacite their srevice to
our country.  In no way am I saying that Disable Veteran status should go away.  
There should be some consideration to others to keep the bidding process honest.  
A value system could be created to allow those that check off more boxes to 
receive a higher consideration but not to the point that 4 check markets allow 
them to bid wahtever they want, costing the State of Nevada a rediculous amount 
of money.

This slight change will open up the compettitiveness of bids, which it was intended 
for. Yes 610.02

Limiting the 
economic 
potential of the 
state;

Remove this section so that it 
can allow more competitive 
bids.

No all trades have an apprecntiship and those that
do ar almost 100% Union.  This section elimnates 
almost all contractors who are not affiliated with 
a Union yet have the workforce and skillset to 
accomplish what's needed to hold a NV 
Contractors License.   Yes Positive

This elimnates the conflict that the NV Contractos 
Board issues licenses based on competency only to 
have that thrown out the window when it comes to 
certain bids.  Just becasuse a Contractor doesn;t 
have an apprentiship program shouldn;t emlimate 
from the opportunity to bid and be awarded work. No

5 J&J Enterprises Services inc 338.06 All of the above;
state law basically gives unions all the power to determine PW 
Vez PW is much higher than other states and costs the state much Money 

Non union wages could save a lot of money 
for the state  Yes Positive i dont see a downside  No

6 Boyd Martin Construction LLC 338

Limiting the economic 
potential of the 
state;Unnecessarily onerous;

Public entities should be required to hard‐bid all projects.  There also 
needs to be some kind of consequence for public entities that do not 
follow payment terms (or other terms) of 338. 

Allowing CMAR gives the public entity the 
right to choose whoever they want for a 
project with no real justification.  When 
that happens, several smaller qualified 
companies lose out on the ability to do this 
work because they cannot compete with 
the marketing arm of the larger firms.  In 
the next five years, the majority of schools 
will be built by the same five companies.

There do not appear to be real 
consequences for public entities that do 
not follow the law short of going to the 
media.  The entities know that the only way
they will be held accountable is by a long 
and expensive trial ‐ a trial most people are 
not willing to put themselves through.  
CCSD is illegally holding funds on us as I 
type this and we know it will cost us more 
to fight them so we just have to sit here 
and not so patiently wait. Yes Positive Self‐explanatory. No

7 JT PAINTING 338132 All of the above; LOWER PREVEILING WAGES RATE TO $100,000 MORE OPORTUNITY FOR ALL Yes Positive STATE GETS MORE WORK DONE WITH LESS BUDGET No

8
BRAMCO CONSTRUCTION 
CORPORATION 338.62

Limiting the economic 
potential of the state; Keep in person paper proposals to be allowed.

Submittal of the current electronic 
submission of the proposals has its 
problems if the NDOT web site is down. Yes Negative

Perhaps an electronic submission of the proposal isn't able to be submitted due to 
a web site problem or the contractor's computer is experiencing problems. No

9 Etchemendy Engineering Inc 625.61 Obsolete;

Eliminate the need for encrypting signatures.  With todays computer 
technology it doesn't protect anything and just causes undue 
complication for the designers, jurisdictions and contractors.  

With todays computer technology it 
doesn't protect anything and just causes 
undue complication for the designers, 
jurisdictions and contractors.   No Positive

I don't see any adverse effects, the current requirements are outdated, 
unnecessary and can be circumvented simply.  The benefits would be eliminating 
undue complication for the designers, jurisdictions and contractors.     No

10 PERFORMANCE ELECTRIC 341.1
Limiting the economic 
potential of the state; Electronic submission 

Using a billing platform such as WAWF or 
IPP Yes Positive Could be cost efficient by saving potential interest or penalty No

11 AAA Air Filter Co 171104 All of the above; No issues N/A No Positive None No

12 FEA Consulting Engineers 338.13
Limiting the economic 
potential of the state; n/a n/a Yes Positive n/a No

13 Optiv Security Inc. 338.4 Unnecessarily onerous; Change the 10 day period to 10 business days.  Including weekends and holidays in the 10 
day period could lead to a very small 
window of opportunity to comply. 

No Positive Benefits ‐ Allowing appropriate Ɵme to provide an appeal of disqualificaƟon will leadNo

14 Shaheen Beauchamp Builders 338.64 Limiting the economic 
potential of the state;

Open up the CMAR process and allow more projects to more GCs. Because of the format and point system, It 
has become limited to a select group of 
large  GCs who are awarded all the 
projects.  Excluding a larger number of 
qualified GCs who can not compete.  The 
State loses out because competition in 
removed from the process.

Yes Positive More compeƟƟon in the process will save the State big dollars and allow smaller Ne Yes 338.46 Unnecessarily 
onerous;

Streamline and speed up Streamline and speed up would same all parties 
time and money

Yes Positive Streamline and speed up would same all parties time
and money

No

15 George M. Rogers, Architect 0 All of the above; the regulations are okay changes do not need to occur No Positive none No



State Public Works Division
Executive Order 2023‐003
Survey Results

16 Dan J. Peterson Company 338 Unfocused and 
inefficient;Obsolete;Unneces
sarily onerous;Limiting the 
economic potential of the 
state;

Eliminate Outdated Yes Positive No adverse all positive Yes 341 Unfocused and 
inefficient;Obs
olete;Unnecess
arily 
onerous;Limitin
g the economic 
potential of the 
state;

Completely delete the requiremIn this day & age it is unnecessary Yes Positive no aderse,
all beneficial by reducing government interference

No

17 Carpenter Sellers Del Gatto 
Architects

0 Unnecessarily onerous; No changes are necessary.  I am not clear on why the survey does not allow0 No Positive 0 No

18 American Institute of Architects 
(AIA)

341 All of the above; Streamline the process and expedite reviews in a timely manner. Raise 
the limit when the SPWD takes over a projects and leave the management
with the local entities that are more familiar with the documents and 
their campus.  

The existing system is laborious and adds 
too much time and costs to the expediting 
of public buildings and major renovations. 
If the campus have design professionals, 
they would be better prepared to address 
the construction of public works.

Yes Positive Should increase donations to universities and provide better stewardship of the 
donated monies. The state would need to find a better way to fund the SPWD.   

Yes 338 All of the 
above;

Eliminate the limits on the 
number of Construction 
Manager at Risk (CMAR) and 
Design/Build (D/B) projects 
that can be performed in a 
fiscal year.  

The limitations of alternate delivery methods has 
forced many institutions to use design/bid/build. 
Design, bid , build is the less flexible solution and 
forces intuitions to work with the lowest bidder 
that plans to recoup any losses by change orders 
and delaying the project, forcing the institutions 
to take drastic resources to complete the work.    

Yes Positive It would force construction firms to be better at 
bidding projects, educate their workforce and be 
more efficient with their processes. It would force 
basic construction firms to become familiar with 
CMAR or D/B and not continue the fleecing of public 
institutions that are at times ill equipment to 
address the change order tactics of some 
contractors.  

No

19 CORE 338.62 Unnecessarily onerous; Remove requirements for specific bid form.  Many qualified and otherwise responsive 
bids have been Disqualified on the 
technicality of not using or improperly 
filling out CMAR's bid form. This has cost 
the State and other public agencies millions 
of dollars.

Yes Positive Pros: More inclusive and competitive bid results.
Cons: Might take a little digging to find some incidental data in sub proposal.

No

20 NSHE 338.5 Limiting the economic 
potential of the state;

Provide a greater bandwidth to use design / build more often vs CMAR. 
Remove the design / build limits of the size of the contracts and remove 
the limits of the number of times we can use design / build. 

Currently CMAR process lends itself to 
design change orders that would not 
happen under the design / build contractor.
This costs the project and the State more 
money than the original contract bid. 

Yes Positive Adverse ‐ less use of CMAR as a contract. Beneficial ‐ the State and project will 
save money using a design / build process. 

No

21 Saarem Consulting Engineers 341.311 Unfocused and inefficient;

The prime consultant's fee should be able to take into consideration the 
effects of inflation as does the contractor's budget for the project which 
has an inflation adder. 

To entice good consultant's and 
compensate them fairly since contractors 
are afforded inflationary increases. No Negative More prime consultants providing proposals for State projects. No

22 Saarem Consulting Engineers 341.083 Unfocused and inefficient; Rules around having to accept the lowest bidder should be reviewed

Lowest bidders tend to have a high number 
of change orders in order to recoup profit 
left our during the low bid process.  Change 
order fees almost always seem to be 
excessive. Yes Positive Slightly higher bid at first, but fewer change orders resulting in less overall cost No



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit D 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC WORKSHOP 

Executive Order 2023-003  

Compliance Regulation Review 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, in compliance with the Governor’s Executive Order 

2023-003, the State Public Works Board and the State Public Works Division (SPWD) 

will hold a public workshop to consider survey results, public comment, and staff 

comments regarding portions of chapter 338 and 341 of the Nevada Administrative Code 

(NAC).   

 

The regulation review includes the following: 

 

1. Summary of Survey Results. SPWD distributed a survey seeking input from 

stakeholders as directed by the Executive Order. The survey was also posted on SPWD’s 

website. Stakeholders had 2 weeks to respond. SPWD posted the survey on its webpage 

and distributed the survey to 600+ stakeholders on February 27, 2023. The list of 

stakeholders was compiled from the following:  

 

• Active State of Nevada/Public Works Vendors 

• Pre-Qualified Contractors 

• Consultants lists obtained from SPWD’s Professional Services Section 

 

An overview of the survey results are as follows: 

• 21 total responses 

• 7 responses regarding regulations outside SPWD authority 

 

Remaining responses were as follows: 

 

NAC 338 

• No changes Necessary 

o 4 comments 

• Construction Manager at Risk 

o 4 comments  

• Qualification of Bidders: subcontractors 

o 1 comment 

• No Details 

o 1 comment 

• Veteran’s Preference 

o 1 comment 

• NAC 338 and 341 (Delete all) 

o 1 comment 

NAC 341 

• Administration  

o 2 comments  

• Green Building Design Measures 

o 1 comment  



 

The survey results are available under the tab SURVEY RESULTS at: 

www.publicworks.nv.gov 

 

Also, for consideration at the Workshop, State Public Works Division staff make the 

following recommendations as required by EO 2023-003: 

 

1. Green Building Design Regulations –  

 

NAC 341.341 Simple payback period defined.  Delete: unnecessary and redundant.  

 

2. NAC General Provisions –  
   

NAC 341.065 Contract documents; insurance. Delete unnecessary and redundant.  

 

NAC 341.086 Alternative bids.  Delete, unnecessary and redundant as this requirement 

is included in contract documents.  

 

NAC 341.127 Review of proposals regarding local adoption of Uniform Plumbing Code. 

Delete as unnecessary and redundant.   

 

NAC 341.136 Selection of professional consultant for project: Procedure for selection 

with assistance of committee.  Revise, and raise threshold of $250,000 required for 

committee selection to $1,000,000.  Obsolete.  As prices increase, requiring a formal 

selection process and consultant presentation on projects over $250,000 wastes 

resources, and does not add value.   

  

The workshop is scheduled to begin at 9:00 am on April 12, 2023, and will be 

conducted by video conference between the following locations: 

 

State Public Works Board 

515 East Musser, Suite 102 

Carson City, Nevada 89701 

 

 and 

 

State Public Works Board 

2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 

 

http://www.publicworks.nv.gov/


Members of the public may make oral comments at this meeting. Persons wishing to 

submit written testimony or documentary evidence in the excess of two typed, 8 ½” x 11” 

pages must submit the material to the attention of the Administrator, State Public Works 

Division, to be received no later than April 5, 2023, at the following address: 

 

State Public Works Division 

515 East Musser, Suite 102 

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4263 

 

Written comments, testimony, or documentary evidence in excess of two typed pages will 

not be accepted at the time of the hearing. The purpose of this requirement is to allow 

adequate time for the review of the documents. 

 

Members of the public who are disabled and require reasonable accommodations or 

assistance at the meeting should notify the State Public Works Board, 515 East Musser, 

Suite 102, Carson City, Nevada 89701-4263, Phone (775) 684-4141, at least 24 hours 

prior to the date of the workshop. 

 

This “Notice of Workshop” and the topics regarding the Division regulation review have 

been sent to all persons on the agency’s mailing list. The Notice of Workshop is also 

available on the SPWD website: www.publicworks.nv.gov  

 

Copies are on file for inspection and copying at the following locations during normal 

business hours: 

 

State Public Works Division’s offices located at:   

515 East Musser, Suite 102,  

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4263  

 

and  

 

State Public Works Division’s offices located at:   

2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104.  

http://www.publicworks.nv.gov/




Joe Lombardo 
Governor 
 

 

Jack Robb              
Director 

 
Matthew Tuma 
Deputy Director 

 
Kent A. LeFevre 

 Administrator 

Carson City Office: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
Phone:  (775) 684-4141 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (775) 684-1800 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

Las Vegas Office: 
2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 
Phone:  (702) 486-5115 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (702) 486-4300

STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 
Meeting of April 12, 2023 

 
 
Agenda Item # 7 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: 
 
Board comment and discussion  

 
DISCUSSION: 

 
• Board Comments on any Agenda Item 
• Items to be included in future agendas 
• Review of action items for SPWD Management 
• Set Future meeting dates  

 
 
PRIOR ACTIONS: 

 
Not applicable. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS/ISSUES:    
 
Not applicable. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
Not applicable. 

 
ACTION ITEM: 
 
Informational. 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Assistant to the Administrator  





Joe Lombardo 
Governor 
 

 

Jack Robb              
Director 

 
Matthew Tuma 
Deputy Director 

 
Kent A. LeFevre 

 Administrator 

Carson City Office: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 
Phone:  (775) 684-4141 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (775) 684-1800 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 

Las Vegas Office: 
2300 McLeod Street 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104 
Phone:  (702) 486-5115 

Buildings & Grounds Section 
Phone:  (702) 486-4300

 
STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD 

Meeting of April 12, 2023 
 

Agenda Item # 8 

SUBJECT TITLE:  

Public Comment 

DISCUSSION: 

Public comments will be taken during this agenda item. No action may be taken on a matter raised under 
this item until the matter is included on an agenda as an item on which actions may be taken. At the Chair’s 
discretion, public comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person. 
 
PRIOR ACTIONS: 
 

Not applicable. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS/ISSUES: 
 

Not applicable. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

Not applicable. 
 
ACTION ITEM: 
 

Not required. 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 

Assistant to the Administrator 
 


	April SPWB Meeting Agenda - FINAL (002)
	...
	STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD
	MEETING NOTICE & AGENDA

	Agenda Item 1 Roll Call
	20230406132928364
	Agenda Item 2 Public Comment_
	STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD

	20230406132928364
	Agenda Item 3 minutes (002)
	STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD ACTION ITEM REQUEST

	SPWD Board Meeting 12.9.2022
	20230406132928364
	SPWD Board Meeting 1.4.23
	20230406132928364
	Agenda Item 4 introduction of new board members
	STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD

	20230406132928364
	Agenda Item 5 Legislative Session Update
	STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD

	20230406132928364
	Agenda Item 6 workshop
	STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD

	20230406133659827
	Exhibit A
	Ececutive Order 2023-003
	Exhibit B
	Executive Order 2023-003 Information Report Final
	Exhibit C
	SPWD Stakeholder Survey(1-22) 032823
	Exhibit D
	Workshop Notice FINAL 3-27-23
	20230406132928364
	Agenda Item 7 Board Comment and Discussion 
	Agenda Item 8 Public Comment_
	STATE PUBLIC WORKS BOARD

	20230406132928364

